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Geneva, 2 February 2010
	Ref:
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COM 2/RH

	-
To Administrations of Member States of the Union

	Tel:
Fax:
E-mail:
	+41 22 730 5887
+41 22 730 5853
tsbsg2@itu.int 
	Copy:
-
To ITU-T Sector Members;
-
To ITU-T Associates;

-
To the Chairman and Vice-Chairmen of 
Study Group 2;

-
To the Director of the Telecommunication Development Bureau;

-
To the Director of the Radiocommunication Bureau


	Subject:
	Patent apparently involving use of unassigned E.212 Mobile Country Codes (MCCs)  


Dear Sir/Madam,

1.
On 5 January 2010 the Associate Rapporteur of Q.1/2 published TD 45 (WP 1/2) in order to bring to the attention of ITU-T Study Group 2 a patent that apparently involves the use of unassigned E.212 Mobile Country Codes (MCCs) in "mobile communications devices by a wireless network comprising a SIM for identifying the device in a wireless communications network" (quoted from the patent text).  The patent was filed with the World International Property Organization on 6 April 2005, as number PCT/EP2005/003612.  The patent application is contained in the TD referenced above.

2.
In particular, the Q.1/2 Rapporteur noted that the patent contains the following statement:

“In particular, the MCC value of the IMSI is associated to the particular kind of device on which the SIMs 21 or 31 are installed. To this aim, an MCC value that is currently unassigned by the standard E.212 of the ITU (International Telecommunications Union) is assigned to each family of mobile communications devices. Such value is comprised between 800 and 899 or between 902 and 999. The value 901 cannot be used since it has been assigned by the ITU to devices of the so-called Global Mobile Satellite System. " (page 6 line 14)

More generally speaking, the mechanism described in this patent for SIMs would appear to heavily (if not solely) rely on a principle that consists in using E.212 MCCs that are currently spare without assignment for such codes by the ITU-T.
3.
The E.212 MCCs codes that are at present unassigned could be assigned at any time by the Director of TSB, either to countries that require additional MCCs or for global applications. The use of these unassigned codes involved in the patent will cause confusion or conflict when the codes are assigned to operators in accordance with ITU-T procedures, and this may result in harm to the systems that rely on MCC codes, in particular GSM.  

4.
The applicant of the patent is TELIT COMMUNICATIONS S.P.A.  Its website (http://www.telit.com/en/about/investor-relations/about-us.php) contains the following statement:
“Telit is a leading global wireless technology company. It develops, manufactures and markets GSM/GPRS, UMTS/WEDGE/HSDPA, CDMA/EVDO and Short Range communication modules for machine-to-machine (m2m) applications which streamline business processes by enabling machines, devices and vehicles to communicate via mobile networks.”
5.
Following discussions with the Chairman of ITU-T Study Group 2 and her designated advisors, and discussions on the Q.1/2 mailing list, I have decided to bring this matter to the attention of the membership (and in particular to Member States and their national regulatory bodies) through this Circular and a communication in the Operational Bulletin.

6.
The membership may wish to consider the following:

a) Whether there may be a consensus that use of the unassigned international numbering resources as proposed in the patent would contravene basic principles of resource management and E.212 in particular and whether this would be known to those skilled in the art.
b) Whether the use of numbering resources proposed in the patent is absolutely not workable even though 800-899 and 902-999 are reserved or spare now, in particular because it would not be practical to make almost 20% of the E.212 code space unusable in order to support applications that were developed apparently in contravention of ITU-T Recommendations and procedures.
c) Whether the patent implicitly reflects requirements for E.212 international numbering resources for SIMs, for example, the MCC value is preferably associated to a kind of a mobile device, and the MNC value is associated to one or a family of functionalities of such devices.
7.
I invite the membership to submit contributions as appropriate to ITU-T Study Group 2, in particular:

a) Regarding any concerns that they believe should be transmitted to any relevant organizations such as the GSM Association, in particular whether the proposed scheme should not be embodied in any actual implementations. 
b) Regarding how to satisfy any legitimate requirements that may be implicitly raised by the proposed use of MCC resources and how to address them, if necessary. For example, would it be appropriate to create a new class of MCC+MNC for this purpose to satisfy the market requirement?  Would the introduction of 3-digit Mobile Network Codes (MNCs) provide a more efficient solution, e.g. the first two digits of MNC is associated to a kind of mobile device, the other digit is associated to functions? Etc.
8.
Further, I invite Member States to consider whether to take any national measures regarding the possible implementation of services based upon unassigned numbering resources.

9.
The following communication will appear in the Operational Bulletin:

The TSB has been informed of a patent that apparently involves the use of unassigned E.212 Mobile Country Codes (MCCs).  The patent was filed with the World International Property Organization on 6 April 2005, as number PCT/EP2005/003612.  The patent apparently calls for the use of E.212 MCC codes comprised between 800 and 899 or between 902 and 999.  Those reserved or unused values may be assigned in the future either to countries that require additional MCCs or for global applications.  Subsequent assignments of these spare E.212 resources could create confusion and operational problems for networks that use MCC codes, in particular mobile networks based on GSM.  The patent in question is contained in ITU-T Study Group 2 TD 45 (WP 1/2).  TSB Circular 87 brings the matter to the attention of the membership and invites the membership to submit contributions to ITU-T Study Group 2 regarding any concerns that they might have regarding implementation of the use of numbering resources proposed in the patent and regarding solutions to meet any requirements that are implicitly raised in the patent.  Please consult that Circular for further details.
Yours faithfully,

Malcolm Johnson
Director of the Telecommunication
Standardization Bureau
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